SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 7, 2011
9:00 a.m

9:00: 16 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel; Representative M ke Hawker; Christy
Harvey, Staff, Senator Welechowski; Elizabeth Nudel man,
Director, School Finance, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent; Robert Eason, Coordinator Food Services, North
Sl ope School District; Carl Rose, Association of Al aska
School Boards; WIlliam J. Streur, Conm ssioner, Departnent
of Health and Social Services; Denise Daniello, Executive
D rector, Al aska Commission on Aging; Marie Darlin,
Coor di nat or, AARP Task Force.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Gary Baldwin, Bethel; Amy Rouse, Director of the AK School
Nutrition Association; Dol ores Farrell, Sel f, Sitka;
Therese Ashton, Principal, Wangell Public School; Carol
Comeau, Superintendent, Anchorage School District; Bob
Cruni ey, Superi nt endent Chugach School District; Ron
Kreher, Director, Public Assistance, Departnment of Health
and Soci al Services.



SUMVARY
SB 3 FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS

SB 3 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

HB 16 EXTEND SENI OR BENEFI TS PAYMENT PROGRAM

HB 16 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sbh3
Senate Bill NO 3

"An Act providing for funding for school Iunch and
br eakfast. "

9: 00: 39 AM

CHRI STY HARVEY, STAFF, SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI, introduced the
Power Poi nt presentation "Funding for Alaska's School
Meal s, "(copy on file).

Ms. Harvey detailed Slide 2: "Three Goals for the School
Meals Bill,"

* Mre schools serving neals
e Mre kids in each school fed
e Mre nutritious neals served

Ms. Harvey quoted the statistic, "one out of every eight
Al aska famlies struggles to put enough food on the table
each year."

Ms. Harvey addressed Slide 5. "Hunger in Al aska 2010,"

e 74,000 Al askans seek food assi stance each year.

» 43 percent of households visiting food pantries in
Al aska have a child under the age of 18.

Ms. Harvey discussed Slide 6: "Students In Need Not Being
Reached, "

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/07/11 9:00 A M



51,000 Alaskan Children are eligible for reduced or
free |unch.
However :

e Six school districts do not offer breakfast or
| unch.

e 15 percent of schools that do participate in the
school lunch program do not offer breakfast.

e OQverall, 60 percent of |ower-incone kids are not
bei ng reached by the school neals program

9:03: 56 AM

Ms. Harvey discussed the data on Slide 7: "Alaska in Bottom
10 for Participation.” She pointed out that Al aska ranks
ninth fromthe bottomof all 50 states in the participation
of lowincone children in the school neal prograns. She
added that nmany children have access to real food only
t hrough the school neal program

Ms. Harvey continued wth Slide 10: "Alaskan Schoo
Breakfasts Served FY 09-10." She explained that Al askan
schools served approxinmately 3.6 mllion breakfasts | ast
fiscal year. The federal reinbursenent has not kept up with
the needs of +the schools since the inception of the
program Many schools are therefore dipping into their
operating budgets. The average cost to prepare a breakfast
or lunch does not match the federal reinbursement rates as
exhibited on Slide 11: "Current Breakfast Reinbursenent
Rates" and Slide 13: "Current Lunch Rei mbursenent Rates."

Ms. Harvey explained Slide 14: "The Need." She explained
that despite federal subsidies, Al aska schools fall $9
mllion short. She hoped that the proposed program would
prevent the schools from dipping into their operating
budgets. She understood that the legislature is tasked with
stewardi ng Al aska's noney. She wished to ensure that the
i nvestment was a wi se one for the state.

9: 06: 05 AM

Ms. Harvey discussed Slide 16: "lnvesting in School Meals
Provides a "Two-Fer"” in returns.” She explained that short-
term returns on the investnent include better academc
per f ormance, better behavior, better attendance, and better
health. The long-term returns include better attendance,
whi ch equal |ower dropout rates. Lower dropout rates equa

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/07/11 9:00 A M



| oner prison populations, higher graduation rates equal
hi gher incones, and |ower obesity rates equal |ower health
care costs.

9:07:17 AM

Ms. Harvey nentioned that she had a bibliography of the
studies quoted in her presentation, for those interested.
She nentioned that various studies have shown that when
kids are fed they perform better on conprehensive testing
with better attention, nmenory and verbal fluency.

Ms. Harvey discussed Slides 22 and 23: "Better Behavior in
School . "

* Researcher not ed a signi ficant decr ease in
behavi oral "oppositional scores" for students eating
school breakfast. " Oppositional scores" neasure
whet her or not students are likely to break the

rul es, have problens with authority or are quick to
anger than nost individuals in their age groups.

* Researchers found | owincone students who ate neals
at school were less likely to be hyperactive and had
fewer behavioral or attention problens than their
hungry peers.

» Researchers conclude that classroom breakfast works
and that a pilot program in New York resulted in
decreased hunger and inprovenents in factors
critical to student |earning such as tardiness and
di sciplinary referral rates.

* Increased school br eakf ast parti ci pation is
associated wth fewer enotional or behavi oral
pr obl ens. Teacher at school t hat i ncreased

participation in their school breakfast prograns
reported a positive change in student behavior (60%
and inproved in student attentiveness (63%.

9:09: 24 AM

Ms. Harvey discussed Slide 25: "Better Attendance.”

» Higher Rates O Attendance
o Studies show that wuniversal school breakfast
program participation is associated w th higher
rates of attendance and declines in tardiness.

e Lower Rates OF Tardi ness

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/07/11 9:00 A M



0 Schools with increased participation in school
breakfast prograns had their proportion of
children chronically tardy decreased by 67
percent .

Ms. Harvey addressed Slides 27 and 28: "Better Health."

e Lower Qoesity Rates
o Grls from "food insecure” households are
significantly less likely to become overweight
(68 percent) if they participate in school
| unch and breakfast prograns.

e Mre Physically Active
0 Students who ate breakfast daily were nore
likely to participate in physical activity
three or nore times a week than breakfast
ski ppers.
« Al askan Obesity
o 25.4 percent of Al askans are currently
consi dered "obese."
« The High Cost of Cbesity
o0 Recent studies project that, if our national
wei ght problem continues as it has been
obesity will cost the USA about $344 billion in
nedi cal -rel ated expenses by 2018, eating up
about 21 percent of health-care spending.

9:11: 00 AM

Ms. Harvey discussed the proposal of an increase of $.35
for breakfast and $.15 for lunch. She provided Slide 31:
"Exanples of Support,” exhibiting all of the many
supporters of the proposal.

9:11: 48 AM

Ms. Harvey discussed Slide 33: "The Bottom Line,"

Senate Bill 3 is a solid investnent in Alaska's
future, providing both short-term and long-term
payoffs for Al aska's students.

We spend a great deal of noney on education in Al aska.

This conparatively small investnent wll help our
students reap the maxi mum benefits from our schools.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/07/11 9:00 A M



By setting our kids up for success now, we may be able
to avoid costly problenms in the future.

9:12:15 AM

Senator Thomas asked to know the threshold for both the
reduced and supplenented rates. M. Harvey responded that
the rate for a household size of 2 is $33 thousand per year
for reduced |unch and $23 thousand per year for free |unch.
She quoted $51 thousand for the reduced price for a famly
of 4 and $35 thousand for free neals. She explained that
the figures exhibit the federal poverty |evel adjusted for
Al aska.

Senator O son expressed dismay at the figures presented
which display children's |ack of access to food. He asked
about the distribution of these children throughout the
state. Ms. Harvey responded that rural areas suffer greatly
as the shipping is quite pricey. She pointed out one
conponent of the bill which adjusts the nunbers through the
district cost factors to address the needs of rural
school s.

Senator O son comented on the sponsor statenent and the
proposed increases. He opined that an increase of 15 cents
in rural areas was insignificant when conpared to the high
cost of transportation. M. Harvey agreed and responded
that she wanted to add the necessary funds for the rura
ar eas.

9:16: 11 AM
Senat or Thomas wonder ed i f t he f eder al maxi mum
rei nbursenent was in literal form M. Harvey explained

that the quoted figure is the maxi num anbunt based on need
and reinbursed by the federal governnent. She added that a
$9 mllion gap exists between what is required and what is
provi ded by the federal governnent.

9:17:24 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FI NANCE, DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, explained the different
components of the fiscal plan regarding the school |unch
and breakfast program She noted that the bill creates a
new state programto provide supplenmental state funding for
the existing breakfast and lunch programs. Currently,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/07/11 9:00 A M



districts receive approximately $32 to $36 mllion in
federal funding for the school |unch program The total
expenditures are approximately $58 million. The required
federal match for the program is $492 thousand, which is
met from the $9 million transferred from school operating
funds. The bill would not increase the nunber of students
participating, but would provide approxinmately $2 mllion
to school districts to use for breakfast and |lunch prograns
or to offset the $9 nillion transferred from operating
f unds.

Ms. Nudel man di scussed the fiscal note. Page one of the
fiscal note shows $2.1 mllion in 2012, $2.3 mnmllion in
2013, $2.3 mllion in 2014, $2.4 mllion in 2015, $2.5
mllion in 2016 and $2.6 mllion in 2017. She continued to
detail the fiscal note.

9:21:44 AM

Co- Chair Stedman asked about the fiscal inpact of the six
schools that do not offer the lunch or breakfast program
Ms. Nudel man responded that the six schools currently not
offering the program are small schools and would require
necessary equi pnment. She listed the various schools
totaling 490 students.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if the schools that offer |unch
alone mght begin to offer breakfast if the I|egislation
passes. M. Nudel man responded that additional hurdles nust
be overconme to provide the addition of breakfast prograns
for those schools currently wthout.

9:23:43 AM

Senator McQuire stated that she supports the bill sponsor's
intention. She wondered about the nethods used to encourage
new interest in the program for schools not yet

participating. She asked about including new children by
providing for a state match. She asked about the potenti al
of increasing the prograns w thout additional students. She
recommended that state and agriculture prograns grow as a
result of the program She requested creative alternatives
regardi ng the food choices in the program

Co-Chair Stedman requested the percentages of students
involved in the programfor the various school districts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/07/11 9:00 A M



Co- Chair Stedman asked about the administration's position
on the bill. M. Nudel man answered that the adm nistration
does not have a position on the bill.

9:26:41 AM

Senator O son recalled that the presentation listed that
six districts did not offer either lunch or breakfast. He
assunmed that the entire district did not offer the program
Ms. Nudelman clarified that six school districts do not
offer either Dbreakfast or lunch. An additional ten
districts do not participate in the breakfast program

9:27: 56 AM

Co- Chair Stedman pointed out the new fiscal note from the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)
reflecting a $2,143,000 appropriation in FY 12. Funding for
the programis not in the governor's budget.

9:28:48 AM

GARY  BALDW N, SUPERI NTENDENT, LOAER  KUSKOKW M SCHOCL
DI STRICT, BETHEL (via teleconference), discussed the need
for Bethel to have access to the program Many children

woul d not eat any food until lunch if not for the breakfast
program Mich of the current funding is intended for
i nstruction pur poses. He ment i oned hi s district's

conprehensive nutrition policies.

9:32:12 AM

AMY ROUSE, DI RECTOR OF THE AK SCHOOL NUTRI TI ON ASSOCI ATI ON
(via teleconference), testified in support of t he
| egislation. She pointed out the many children who are
either honeless or in transition in our district. Each day,
many children receive their only meal on school grounds.
The funds included in SB 3 would help to provide the neals
that many children have cone to expect.

9:35:15 AM

DOLORES FARRELL, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference) testified
in support of the legislation. She applauded the previous
testinmony. She opined that information regarding nutrition
and supplenentation of student nutritional needs nust be
offered prior to supplenentation. She supported education

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/07/11 9:00 A M



and the preparation of foods on site. She asked about the
hurdl es encountered by the schools wshing to provide
breakfast to needy children. She proposed a nethod of
reaching the children who need the food wthout
conprom sing their self esteem

9:37:48 AM

THERESE ASHTON, PRI NCI PAL, WRANGELL PUBLIC SCHOOL (via
tel econference), testified in support of the |egislation.
She noted that the Wangell district superintendent was
responsi ble for the student breakfast and |unch program
She stated that 60 percent of the school's students qualify
for free or reduced prices. She pointed out that one
conplaint fromstudents is that the portions are too small

9:40: 38 AM

CAROL COVEAU, SUPERI NTENDENT, ANCHORAGE SCHOOL DI STRICT
(via tel econference), echoed the prior testinony. She noted
that 41 percent of the Anchorage School District's students
qualify for free or reduced |unch. She pointed out the need
for additional fruits and vegetables in the neals provided
to the students. She opined that additional fruits and
vegetables would nake the neals nore palatable for the
students. She added that Anchorage has a system where they
are able to provide occasional funds out of their genera
fund to students who do not qualify for free or reduced
[ unch. Students in her district are not identified as a
free or reduced lunch recipient, which elimnates the
enbar assnent factor.

9:43: 26 AM

BOB CRUMLEY, SUPERI NTENDENT, CHUGACH SCHOOL DI STRICT (via
tel econference), testified in support of the |egislation.
He stated that his district chose not to participate in the
free and reduced |unch program The district has instead, a
free breakfast program funded out of their general fund. He
stated that the breakfast is sonmetines the only nutritious
nmeal received by a student all day. He noted that the
program i ncreases attendance.

9:45: 15 AM

ROBERT EASON, COORDI NATOR FOOD SERVI CES, NORTH SLOPE SCHOOL
DISTRICT, testified in support of the |legislation. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/07/11 9:00 A M



expl ained that the current programis regulated well in his
district. He noted that reauthorization wll take place
July 1, 2012 that wll increase the cost of the Ilunch
prograns because of increased fruits and vegetables. The
need for state support is thus increased.

9:47:25 AM

CARL ROSE, ASSOCI ATI ON OF ALASKA SCHOOL BQARDS, stated that
research suggests that hunger is a large distraction for
students. He echoed the comments nade by the sponsor at the
neeting's onset. He spoke in support of the |egislation. He
mentioned a recent article from the Chicago Tribune
regarding a free and reduced | unch and breakfast program

9:50: 46 AM

Senat or O son expressed concern regarding the palatability
of the nmeals provided. He asked if the children were eating
the neals or throwng them away. M. Rose responded that
many different situations exist in schools regarding the
nutrition provided. He nentioned fundraising efforts such
as concession stands that mght be in conpetition wth
school lunches. He felt that the mjority of options
including free and reduced |lunches provide palatable
choices. He comented that sone of the school districts are
unable to provide the food as they lack the necessary
facilities.

9:52:27 AM

Senator Thomas asked about the identification of students
regarding fee or reduced lunches. M. Rose answered that

many  school districts are aware of the potenti al
enbarrassnment factor and renmedy it in an appropriate
manner .

9:53: 55 AM

Co- Chair Stednman asked about the 35 percent of food that is
rumored to be thrown away. He discussed the need for a
Consuner Price Index (CPl) and sunset date for the program
He asked about the bill's effective date.

Senator MQ@uire asked about the communities that do not

of fer breakfast and |unch. M. Harvey offered to provide
answers to the commttee.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/07/11 9:00 A M



SB 3 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#hb16
HOUSE BILL NO. 16

"An Act extending senior benefits.”

9:57:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER stated that HB 16 extends the
Al aska senior benefits paynment program for an additional
four years. The program was established in 2007 and wll
sunset June 30, 2011 without affirmative action during this
| egislative session. He stated that 10,093 elder Al askans
currently benefit from the program The ol dest recipient of
the benefits is 105 years old. The established program
provi des nonthly cash assistance to Al aska residents age 65
or ol der whose household incone is |less than 175 percent of
the federal poverty guideline for Al aska. He explained the
various tiers of the program He stressed that HB 16 does

not alter the <current benefits; it nmerely extends the
program four years. The program costs $20 nillion per year
and the legislation is a maintenance conmtnment. If the
noney appropriated by the legislature were deened

insufficient to meet the needs of the program the
Department of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS) is
authorized in statute to reduce or elimnate the benefit
available to the recipient in order to neet the nost
pressi ng needs of the state.

10: 03: 41 AM

Representative Hawker referred to a convincing handwitten
constituent letter (copy on file). He believed that the
bill should pass out of commttee.

10: 05: 02 AM

Senator Thomas referred to the sectional analysis stating
that the departnent nmay reduce or elimnate the cash
benefit avai l abl e to reci pients based on t he
appropriations. He asked if the benefits would be reduced
on a prorated basis. Representative Hawker responded that
regul ations regarding potenti al mani festations of the
ment i oned section have not yet been est abl i shed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/07/11 9:00 A M



Hi storically, ratable reductions are inplenented as early
as possible in a fiscal year, elimnating the need to
prorate.

Co-Chair Stedman requested a departnent's perspective, and
remarked that he did not anticipate any shortfall. He
expressed interest only in a hypothetical answer.

WLLIAM J. STREUR, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, replied that he wuld provide the
information at a later tine.

10: 08: 38 AM
AT EASE

10: 09: 50 AM
RECONVENED

Senat or Thomas asked about the "see del ayed repeal note.”

Representative Hawker referenced the Alaska statutes. He
noted the footnote known as the "delayed repeal,” which is
the four year sunset addressed in commttee.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the admnistration supports the
legislation. M. Streur replied that the admnistration
supports the extension.

Co-Chair Stedman asked why there are six positions needed
to extend the program Comm ssioner Streur responded that
the six positions are a continuation of the current
staffing allocated to the program Representative Hawker
rem nded that the programis an eligibility based program
whi ch includes 10 thousand beneficiaries. The eligibility
is dynam c and the nunber of enployees is reflective of the
anount of work necessary to nanage the eligibility status
of the beneficiaries.

Co-Chair Stedman asked how seniors are notified that the
program exists. Conm ssioner Streur responded that the
program is advertised on the state website and in | ocal
division of public assistance offices. He believed that
both rural and urban accesses are simlar.

10: 14: 05 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/07/11 9:00 A M



Co- Chair Stednman asked about qualifying issues for seniors
in the Pioneer Hone. M. Streur responded that seniors in
the Pioneer Hone are not eligible due to the establishnent
of the Pioneer Honme fee. Since the mpjority of the
residents in the Pioneer Home are Medicaid eligible, it is
essential to maximze Medicaid. If a resident receives a
subsidy, the noney is then used to offset the Medicaid
paynent .

Co-Chair Stedman asked if seniors in the Pioneer Honme who
pay their own bills are included. He asked about those
residents fortunate enough to have the liquidity to pay the
substantial bills each nonth. He wondered if the Medicaid
issue was inpacted for those individuals. M. Streur
of fered to provide future information.

Co-Chair Stednman asked about those residents of the Pioneer
Home who are without the additional funds needed for snal
| uxuri es.

10:16: 30 AM

Senator O son asked if benefits were granted to those
people living out of state. M. Streur believed that the
checks were for residents only.

Senator O son asked about provisions regarding transport
out of state for nedical reasons. Representative Hawker
stated that beneficiaries nust be Al askan residents. He
expl ai ned t hat ei ght uni dentified recipients wer e
identified last year for leaving the state and the cases
are currently in review.

Representative Hawker added that the program statutorily
provi des for recovery provisions for any benefits that were
pai d i nappropriately as stated in AS 47.45. 308.

Senator Thomas asked about electronic advertising nethods
in regard to seniors and | ow incone seniors in rural areas.
He expressed concern regarding the distribution of
i nformati on.

10: 19: 30 AM

Co-Chair Stedman discussed the fiscal note from DHSS and
the addition of $1,968,000 in general funds. The
adm nistration is aware of the true cost of the program He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 02/07/11 9:00 A M



believed it appropriate for the governor to bring foreword
a budget anendnent to fund the item He nentioned the two
page spreadsheet exhibiting case summaries and the
expenditure forecast.

RON KREHER, ACTI NG DI RECTOR, PUBLIC ASSI STANCE, DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES (via teleconference) offered
to respond to questions.

10: 21: 32 AM

DENI SE DANI ELLO, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COWM SSI ON ON
AG NG, expressed support for the legislation. She noted
that the bill provides funding for basic necessities for
the seniors in Alaska. She noted that the comm ssion
supports this legislation and the extension for the
benefits paynent program She stated that greater than
10,000 senior citizens receive benefits from the program
She stated that several areas in the state, including the
North Sl ope borough, have citizens participating in the
program

MARI E DARLI N, COORDI NATOR, AMERI CAN ASSCCI ATI ON OF RETI RED
PERSONS (AARP) TASK FORCE, enphasized that the senior
benefits program allows seniors to remain in Al aska. She
spoke in support of the |egislation.

10: 25: 34 AM

Representative Hawker repeated one question raised by
Senator O son regarding those senior citizens currently
living out of state. He explained that the question is
addressed in the existing statute, Section 47.45.304. He
recogni zed that the situation exists for certain seniors
and did not want the limting factor to lead to denied
access. He noted that when a person |eaves the state, they
|l ose their benefits. The exceptions to that rule include
receiving nedical treatnment out of state, the acconpani nment
of an individual's famly nenber while receiving nedica
treatment outside of the state, and the ability for the
departnment to nake exceptions on a case by case basis.

10: 28: 27 AM

HB 16 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 02/07/11 9:00 A M



#
ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:29 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 02/07/11 9:00 A M



